

A meeting of **EXETER CITY COUNCIL** will be held at the **GUILDHALL**, **HIGH STREET**, **EXETER** on **TUESDAY 16 DECEMBER 2014**, at 6.00 pm, at which you are hereby summoned to attend. The following business is proposed to be transacted:-

8 Audit and Governance Committee - 3 December 2014

3 - 8

10 Executive - 9 December 2014

9 - 18

Date: Monday 8 December 2014

Karime Hassan Chief Executive & Growth Director

NOTE: Members are asked to sign the Attendance Register



Please remember to recycle. If you would prefer not to receive paper copies please let us know. Contact Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265197 or email committee.services@exeter.gov.uk



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Wednesday 3 December 2014

Present:-

Councillor Greg Sheldon (Chair) Councillors Baldwin, Brock, Henson, Laws, Lyons, Morris, Raybould and Williams

Apology:-

Councillor Bowkett

Also Present:-

Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Director Finance, Corporate Manager - Legal, Audit Manager (HP) and Democratic Services Officer (Committees) (SLS)

Also Present:-

David Bray, Senior Manager Assurance, Grant Thornton Victoria J Redler, Executive Audit, Grant Thornton

78 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 September 2014 were taken as read and signed by the Chair as correct.

68 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

No declarations of discloseable pecuniary interest were made.

69 **REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REGISTER**

The report of the Corporate Manager Policy, Communications and Community Engagement was submitted, which advised the Committee of the changes made to the Corporate Risk Register. The Council's corporate risk register ensures that the Council's business was conducted in accordance with the law and appropriate standards, and that public money was safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

The Deputy Chief Executive presented the report and referred to a number of new risks which had been added to the Register. These included a welcome update on the backlog of land charge searches, which would be reduced to an acceptable level by the end of the year. There had been a significant increase in land charge requests which had been in part due to an upturn in the housing market and vibrant local economy. Despite the positive stance in this sector, he also addressed a Member's comment on the impact of welfare reforms. Further clarification was still needed from the Department of Work and Pensions on the imminent introduction of Universal Credit in this area. The Assistant Director Finance stated that they had been studying an analysis of council tax collection rates as well as the wider topic of debt to look to mitigate any future concerns.

The Deputy Chief Executive responded to a Member's comment on a number of issues relating to the RAMM and assured the Members that they were likely to be the subject of a separate briefing for Members.

The Audit and Governance Committee reviewed and noted the updated Corporate Risk Register for the City Council.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE

The Senior Audit Manager, from the Council's external auditors Grant Thornton circulated a paper which provided Members with an updated position of the progress made by them to deliver their responsibility as the City Council's auditor.

Further work would be carried out in respect of the 2013/14 certification work in respect of the City Council's Housing Benefits as additional work on testing cases, including checking the evidence provided had been necessary. A Member enquired if there were any underlying factors that might have contributed to the need for a review of a higher sample of cases. The Deputy Chief Executive advised that an invitation would also be extended to the Assistant Director Customer Access to attend the meeting to formulate an action plan to address the issues raised.

The Senior Auditor advised that further detail would be included in their Certification letter which would be presented to the next meeting.

The Audit and Governance Committee noted the report.

70

71

ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER - GRANT THORNTON

The Senior Audit Manager, from the Council's external auditors Grant Thornton presented the Council's Annual Audit letter which provided a summary and a judgement of the key findings arising from the work carried out for the City Council. He updated the Committee and confirmed that the Annual Audit Letter included an audit of the financial statements, the value for money conclusion and the pooled receipts return, as part of the certification of grant claims and returns. One area of this work in relation to the Council's Housing Benefits remained outstanding and a further breakdown of the work needed to complete this would be made at the next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee.

The certification letter had now been completed and complied with the statutory deadlines. The annual Audit Letter would be published on the City Council's web site and the Audit Commission's website. The audit fee for 2013/14 was £76,283 excluding VAT in line with the planned fee for the year. A copy of a Grant Thornton publication *Rising to the Challenge*, *The Evolution of Local Government*, which provided a summary of findings for a fourth year of financial checks of English local authorities was a useful document and would be circulated to Members for their information.

The Audit and Governance Committee received the Annual Audit Letter.

72 <u>INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT</u>

The report of the Audit Managers was submitted which advised of the internal audit work carried out during the period 1 July to 30 September 2014, together with the current status of each area of the annual Audit Plan for review and the outcomes of the review, where completed. It was noted that a summary of the progress made against the annual Audit Plan, showed that it was on target.

The report also highlighted two areas where a recommendation had been made but not accepted by management, including the need for the completion of e-learning safeguarding training to be made mandatory to all staff. It was felt although this had not been supported, that the issue had been raised sufficiently. The report also included a number of recommendations relating to the valuation of artefacts listed in the Royal Albert Memorial Museums' Accessions Register. The Strategic Management Team subsequently requested that the recommendation should be actioned to ensure that objects in the Accession Register should be assigned a value and a review of the cover made on an annual basis. As a result, the Corporate Risk Register had also been updated.

The Audit and Governance Committee noted the internal Audit Progress Report for the second quarter of the year 2014/15 and accepted the audit report recommendation not accepted by management, as detailed in the report, as being acceptable risks to the Council.

73 <u>MEASURING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - SELF</u> ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST UPDATE

The Audit Manager (HP) referred to the need for the Audit and Governance Committee to periodically evaluate its performance against the responsibilities set out in the Committee's terms of reference to demonstrate the Council's commitment to improving its governance. A self assessment checklist/ questionnaire was circulated to enable Members to assess the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance Committee and identify any further improvements. Members had completed the self assessment of good practice as part of a facilitated group, which also helped to inform a discussion on the results of the questionnaire. A number of queries relating to the independent status of the Committee Members in relation to their membership of other Committees on the Council, and also the role of the Audit and Governance Committee in overseeing the Council's Constitution were raised and a response would be made shortly.

The self-assessment activity also raised the future focus on a number of areas and Members discussed the possibility of a local refresh being arranged to ensure that they were adequately equipped to deal with the issues raised.

It was noted that the CIPFA Self Assessment Checklist – 'Measuring the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee' attached as an appendix to the report was completed by Members of the Audit and Governance Committee. The completed checklist will be used by this Committee to address the need for any improvement.

74 REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 RIPA

The report of the Monitoring Officer/Corporate Manager Legal Services was submitted and reminded Members of the obligations under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) and the Council's RIPA Policy. Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights provided for 'Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence'. There can be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except such as in accordance with the law. In certain limited circumstances, the Council may interfere with the right provided the interference is in accordance with the law, necessary, and proportionate.

RIPA requires the Council to have in place procedures to ensure that when required, covert surveillance was necessary and properly authorised. Surveillance was usually a last resort. RIPA sets out a statutory mechanism for authorising covert surveillance and the use of covert human intelligence sources. RIPA requires that formal "Authorisation" from a senior officer must be obtained before carrying out covert surveillance, monitoring and other evidence-gathering activities. Any such Authorisation granted must be supported by an Order approving the grant or renewal of such Authorisation from a Justice of the Peace (either a District Judge or lay magistrate) before it could take effect.

The Monitoring Officer, Corporate Manager Legal Services responded to a Member's comment on the changes, confirming that even though no authorisations had been granted in the last two years investigating officers needed to follow the authorisation process. She and the Assistant Director Environment were the authorising officers. One other change made was to have the Deputy Chief Executive as the Senior Responsible Officer.

RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee approved the following:-

- (1) a reaffirmation of the Council's RIPA policy and the new format as set out in Appendix 1 to the circulated report;
- (2) delegated authority be given to the Monitoring Officer to update and amend the Policy as necessary, and
- (3) as no application for covert surveillance had been made to the Council's approved "Authorising officers", it was noted that as a consequence no application to the Magistrates' Court requesting approval of any such grant had been made.

75 <u>WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY REVISION</u>

The Monitoring Officer/Corporate Manager Legal Services presented a report which proposed a revision of the Council's Whistleblowing Policy. This needed to be updated to take into account changes to the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. From June 2014, a whistleblowing disclosure could only qualify for protection if an employee reasonably believed that their disclosure was made 'in the public interest'.

RECOMMENDED that Council be requested to approve the revised Whistle Blowing Policy dated 25 July 2014, which was attached to the circulated report, and the Constitution amended accordingly.

76 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of the following items on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

79 REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RISK REGISTER (APPENDIX A)

The report of the Corporate Manager Policy, Communications and Community Engagement was submitted which advised the Committee of the changes to the Risk Register and which was included as an appendix.

PROTECTING THE PUBLIC PURSE FROM FRAUD 2014

A briefing paper from Grant Thornton on protecting the public purse which included strategies for Exeter City Council was presented. The purpose was to provide an information source to support Members on considering their Council's fraud detection activities and also make a caparison with similar local authorities. It also provided a focus for discussing local and national fraud risks, to reflect on local priorities and consider the current strategy resources and capability for tackling fraud.

The Assistant Director Finance responded to a Member's question on the checks made to confirm those households in receipt of the Single Occupancy Council Tax discount in relation to other records held by the Council such as the Electoral Roll.

The Audit and Governance Committee noted the briefing paper.

80

79

FAILURE TO DECLARE DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

The Monitoring Officer and Corporate Manager Legal Services reminded Members of their responsibility to declare any interests and particularly Declarations of Discloseable Pecuniary Interest or DPIs. She advised that the Leader of Dorset County Council had faced prosecution for not properly declaring that he had a Discloseable Pecuniary interest (DPI). He had three offences under the Localism Act 2011. She reminded Members of the importance that, if they had a DPI, they should remove themselves from the Committee meeting so that they did not have the opportunity to debate or vote on the matter when it is discussed. There was a reputational issue not only for the individual Member, but also the Council. If Members were in doubt about any interest, they should always contact her to discuss in advance of a meeting.

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 7.05 pm)

Chair

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

EXECUTIVE

Tuesday 9 December 2014

Present:

Councillor Edwards (Chair)
Councillors Denham, Fullam, Hannaford, Leadbetter, Owen, Pearson and Sutton

Also present:

Chief Executive & Growth Director, Deputy Chief Executive, Assistant Director Economy, Assistant Director Finance, Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support, Corporate Manager Policy, Communications and Community Engagement, Customer Access Development Officer and Democratic Services Manager (Committees)

113 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest were made.

114 <u>MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES 2015/16</u>

The report of Derek Phillips, Chair of Exeter's Independent Remuneration Panel was submitted which advised Members of the recommendations of the City Council's Independent Remuneration Panel in relation to Members' Allowances for 2015/16.

Mr Phillips, Chair of the Panel, acknowledged the experience of the two new Panel Members, Bryony Holden, Chief Executive of South West Councils and Graham Russell, a Senior Associate at South West Councils. He advised Members on the survey and interviews undertaken with 20 Councillors by members of the Panel. He outlined the recommendations to Council in respect of members' allowances for 2015/16 which equated to the officers' pay award for the coming year of 2.2%. The Panel expressed disappointed at the discontinuation of the Councillor's Pension Scheme and they would be pursing this when opportunities arose.

The Leader thanked the Panel for all their hard work on the robust review of Members' Allowances.

RECOMMENDED to Council to agree the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel as set out in paragraph 4 of the circulated report.

115 **RUGBY WORLD CUP 2015 UPDATE**

The Assistant Director Economy updated Members on the current position with regards to the Rugby World Cup. He advised of recent activity in respect of Fanzone, transport, the volunteer programme, marketing strategy and the legacy. The Fanzone now had a draft risk assessment in place and, as part of the Fanzone, CCTV would be installed to the area rear of Boots, which would remain after the World Cup. Confirmation had now been received of the tour of the Trophy next summer. The ticket sales had indicated that about 80% of the sales for the Exeter

venue had gone to the wider South West Area. Tickets sales also indicated that 500 to 1,000 foreign visitors were expected per game although additional visitors from overseas were likely to visit the city during the World Cup. A further detailed report would be brought back to the next Executive.

The Leader commented that the World Cup was expected to generate £39 Million for the local economy.

The Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture stated that the Business community was now starting to come on board and a number of working groups had been set up with local businesses. The four main media communications organisations within the city had now formed a media bank to work together promoting the Rugby World Cup. Ultimately, it was down to the businesses in the city to take advantage of the increase footfall and additional income that this event would bring to the city.

RESOLVED that the position be noted.

116 <u>MAJOR GRANTS AND NEW HOMES BONUS PANEL MINUTES</u>

The minutes of the meeting of the Major Grants and New Homes Bonus Panel held on 27 November 2014 were submitted.

In response to a question, the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture clarified that any decision regarding the future of Exeter Arts Council would be considered by the Major Grants and New Homes Bonus Panel and then Executive.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Major Grants and New Homes Bonus Panel held on 28 July 2014 be received and, where appropriate, adopted.

117 BUSINESS CASE FOR THE COUNCIL'S CHANNEL SHIFT PROGRAMME

The report of the Assistant Director Customer Access was submitted summarising the Council's Channel Shift Programme, outlined in the Business Case attached to the report. Officers were requesting the approval of funding on an invest- to-save basis, which sought to improve the Council services to customers whether they approach the Council face to face, by telephone or via internet-enabled provision.

The Deputy Chief Executive outlined the Council's positive approach to the edelivery of services which included a request for the approval of funding on an invest-to-save basis.

The Customer Access Development Officer gave an overview of the Business Case and identified the cost benefit to the Council over a six year period. The programme would provide high quality telephone and on-line services to enable staff to have more time to deal face to face with those customers with more complex needs. The on-line self service portal would offer a simple, but secure point of access allowing the customer to view every aspect of their transaction with the Council. Customers would still be able to come into the Civic Centre to speak face to face or over the phone to a member of staff to progress their queries and obtain advice and help.

The Leader thanked the officers involved for their hard work in putting this Business Case together.

A Member stated that whilst generally supporting the way forward, he had concerns regarding the Council meeting the needs of the residents with difficult circumstances and the elderly who might not readily have access to technology.

The Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture commented that the Council needed to ensure that it was 'Fit for Purpose' and while encouraging the use of digital technology, officers would be available for face to face contact with those residents that require extra support.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Customer Access stated that the Council needed to move to a digital form of providing service particularly as Universal Credit was rolled out. The Council would continue to offer face to face service for customers with complex needs. It was hoped that in the future the Customer Service Centre would move towards becoming a community hub with a multi agency presence.

The Portfolio Holder for Enabling Services stated that there would still be a face to face presence and that this system would free up more time to be spend on those residents that needed it the most.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RECOMMENDED that Council approves the identified Capital and Revenue funding for the Programme, noting the predicted savings to be subsequently accrued.

118 PROPOSED PASSENGER LIFT AT RAMM QUEEN STREET ENTRANCE

The report of the Museums Manager and Visitor Services Officer was submitted updating Members on the issues relating to the museum's existing DPAL (Disability Platform Access Lift) at the Queen Street entrance, mis-haps and potential risk to visitors and the Council. The lift had not been included as part of the redevelopment of the Museum and there was now a need to ensure that the lift was fit for purpose.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RECOMMENDED that Council approves the installation of an enclosed passenger lift at RAMM's Queen Street entrance and associated works with a budget of £45,000.

OVERVIEW OF REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

119

The report of the Assistant Director Finance was submitted advising Members of the overall projected financial position of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the General Fund Revenue Budgets for the 2014/15 financial year after six months.

The Assistant Director Finance referred to the overall position in respect of the General Fund and the working balance which was projected to rise from £3,364,640 to £3,469,275. He brought to Members' attention the variance in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which was due to a more realistic budget being set and the on-going work taking place to reduce void times, this work would now be extended to the void times in private sector leasing.

Members were advised of the supplementary budgets and two further requests for funding including a sum of £80,000 for the appointment of a Quantity Surveyor and a Construction Design and Management Consultant in respect of the Leisure Complex Project. An additional £11,500 was also required to develop the Business Case for the Channel Shift Programme to include the creation of a temporary post.

In response to a Member's question, the Assistant Director Finance clarified that two vacant sweeper's posts had been deleted from the establishment. The saving of £255,000 in the Customer Service Centre were prior to those expected as a result of the Channel Shift Programme.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RECOMMENDED that Council approve the:-

- (1) General Fund forecast financial position for the 2014/15 financial year;
- (2) HRA forecast financial position for 2014/15 financial year;
- (3) additional supplementary budgets listed in Appendix C;
- (4) outstanding Sundry Debt position as at September 2014;
- (5) creditors' payments performance; and
- (6) Council Tax and Business rates collection performance.

120 CAPITAL MONITORING STATEMENT TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2014

The report of the Assistant Director Finance was submitted to update Members on the current position in respect of the Council's revised annual capital programme and the anticipated level of deferred expenditure into future years.

The Assistant Director Finance advised Members that the grants of £3 million to the Environment Agency for the flood defence works and £615,000 to Strata had now been paid, and £500,000 of the £1 million loan will be paid to the Science Park in January 2015. These payments would show an improved position with regards to the performance of the capital programme.

Members were advised of an additional funding request of £50,000 to invest in the Municipal Bond Agency created by the Local Government Association, which would allow the Council to become a shareholder. A letter of intent had been sent by the 4 December. There had also been an additional funding request for £37,500 for new lighting at Exton Road, as part of a health and safety recommendation to bring the lighting to an acceptable standard to enable staff to work safely in the proximity of refuse collection vehicles at all hours.

A Member raised concerns regarding the impact of the borrowing on the revenue account, the offset of the expenditure on the Athletics Track against a saving in sports facility refurbishment and the underspend on energy saving projects.

The Assistant Director Finance clarified that as not all of the sports facility refurbishment budget was required, it had been used to offset the additional expenditure on the replacement of the Athletics Track at Exeter Arena. The underspend of £425,000 in respect of energy saving projects was being carried

forward to the next financial year and work was on going to deliver energy saving schemes.

The Portfolio Holder for Enabling Service commented that the Council had recently received an award for all the work it was undertaking on Energy Saving Projects.

The Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture clarified that Parkwood Leisure did invest in maintenance, improvement of leisure facilities and equipment as part of their contract.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RECOMMENDED that the Council notes and approves:-

- (1) the current position in respect of the annual capital programme; and
- (2) the additional funding request set out in section 8.8.

(In accordance with Standing Order no.43, Councillor Fullam requested that his voting against this recommendation be recorded)

121 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2014/15 HALF YEARLY UPDATE

The report of the Assistant Director Finance was submitted on the current Treasury Management performance for the 2014/15 financial year and the position regarding investments and borrowings at 30 September 2014. The report was a statutory requirement and was for information only with no key decisions required.

The Assistant Director advised that, currently, monies were invested in accounts where the funds could be recalled the next day and all money market funds used were triple A rating organisations.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RESOLVED that the Treasury Management report in respect of the first six months of the 2014/15 financial year be noted.

122 **BUDGET STRATEGY 2015 - 2016**

The report of the Assistant Director Finance was submitted, providing a strategic overview of the budgetary position for the 2015/16 financial year and beyond including an indication of the likely level of available resources and the known demand for resources and the proposals to ensure that a balanced budget was achieved. The medium term financial plan predicated a balanced budget by 2018/19.

A Member raised concerns regarding the omission of the New Homes Bonus Funds from the figures as this was an income and that the cost of the borrowing was rising.

The Assistant Director Finance clarified the following points in response to Members:-

- the monies for Wear United had not been paid and as this project was no longer going ahead the funds would be added back to the Local Infrastructure Fund budget
- the interest and debt payments with regards to the Leisure Complex Project were included in the medium term financial plan
- advice from the External Auditors and the Audit Commission is that using the New Homes Bonus funds to plug revenue budgets is not appropriate
- the Council does borrow to fund its capital programme.

The Leader stated that the Council did not know how long the New Homes Bonus funding would continue therefore it was not being used to support the revenue account, as in many authorities, and was being spent on projects to increase economic growth in the city.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted and the proposals to establish a balanced revenue budget and capital programme be approved.

(In accordance with Standing Order no.43, Councillor Fullam requested that his voting against this recommendation be recorded and Councillor Leadbetter requested that his abstention from voting be recorded)

123 APPROVAL TO ESTABLISH A NEW STANDING LIST

The report of the Acting Service Lead – Corporate Property Assets Management and Interim Corporate Procurement Manager was submitted examining, in accordance with the contract regulations, the need for modified and comprehensive standing lists of approved contractors to better meet the changing needs of the Council. The report further sought to simplify the process of adding or modifying standing lists in the future to enable more efficient management of processes. Devon County Council would not charge the City Council to use its standing list.

The Leader welcomed the development of procedures to ensure that small and medium sized businesses were able to compete fairly for Council contracts.

RESOLVED that:-

- (1) a trial of the Devon County Council Select List of Approved Contractors (Devon SLoAC) be approved to assess its validity in use as an addition to the Council's own Approved List of Contractors;
- the Interim Corporate Procurement Manager develop procedures to ensure that Small and Medium sized businesses are able to compete fairly for Council let contracts:

RECOMMENDED to Council:-

(3) that delegated authority be given to Assistant Director Finance and Corporate Manager Property to approve the creation or modification of approved contractor standing lists and the Constitution- Contract Regulations - section 2.5.5 be amended accordingly.

ELECTORAL REVIEWS OF DEVON AND EXETER

The report of the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support and Returning Officer was submitted detailing the City Council's proposed response to the Local Government Boundary Commission's current electoral review of Devon. The report also informed Members of the proposed electoral review of the City of Exeter and its implications.

Members were advised of the reasons for the review and of the City Council's concerns for the need to ensure that the County Council and City Council Boundaries were co- terminus. There was a need to move the City Council review swiftly to ensure that adequate time was allowed for consultation and the subsequent implementation of any boundaries changes. The date for an initial decision was mid January 2015.

Member discussed the possible implications of Individual Elector Registration (IER) and the effect this could have on ward numbers and boundaries and there was concern that this could have a detrimental affect on the review.

In response to a Member, the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support and Returning Officer clarified that the review would include the most up to date figures plus projections until 2021. Currently under IER the registered number of electors was short by 6,000.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Customer Access raised concerns regarding the lack of co-terminusity between County and City boundaries and the negative effective this could have on community cohesion in the city.

The Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support and Returning Officer clarified the three criteria that the Boundary Commission must balance which included the interest and identities of local communities.

The Leader proposed an amendment to the membership of the cross party working group to consider the Council's initial decision on its future size and electoral cycle and that it should comprise of four Labour Group Members, two Conservative Group Members and one Liberal Democrat Group Member. This was carried.

RESOLVED that:-

- (1) the comments contained in this report form the basis of the City Council's response to the Local Government Boundary Commission's electoral review of Devon;
- in relation to the Local Government Boundary Commission's electoral review of Exeter, a cross party working group comprising four Labour Group Members, two Conservative Group Members and one Liberal Democrat Group Member be established to consider the Council's initial decision on its future size and electoral cycle; and
- in relation to the Local Government Boundary Commission's electoral review of Exeter, an Extraordinary meeting of Council be held on 20 January 2015, to consider the recommendations of the above working group.

(In accordance with Standing Order no.43, Councillor Fullam requested that his voting against this recommendation be recorded)

SCRUTINY REVIEW WORKING GROUP REPORT

The report of the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support was submitted updating Members on the trial changes to the Scrutiny Agendas and meetings during September and November 2014. The report also outlined the findings of the cross party Scrutiny Review Working Group in respect of the success of these trial changes and comments received from other Members and officers.

Members agreed that the changes had improved the smooth running of the Scrutiny meetings.

RESOLVED that the findings of the Scrutiny Review Working Group together with other Member/Officer comments were noted: and

RECOMMENDED to Council that the trial changes be made permanent with immediate effect and that the arrangement be reviewed in 12 months.

126 APPOINTMENTS TO STRATA - JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

RECOMMENDED that appointments to the Strata Joint Scrutiny Committee be agreed by Council.

127 <u>LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - EXCLUSION</u> <u>OF PRESS AND PUBLIC</u>

RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following item on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Act.

128 PROPOSAL FOR LEISURE COMPLEX AND SWIMMING POOL

The joint report of the Assistant Director Economy and Assistant Director Finance was submitted which sought final approval for the development of the new leisure complex and swimming pool to replace the Pyramids Swimming and Leisure Centre and for the funding to undertake the project.

The Deputy Chief Executive outlined to Members the resource implications including the non financial, the assessment of need and the operational viability.

The Leader proposed an amendment to the membership of the Leisure Complex Programme Board so that the Leader of the Opposition could nominate a representative if he so wished. This was carried.

Scrutiny Committee – Resources considered the report at its meeting on 19 November 2014 and the support and comments of the Members were noted.

RECOMMENDED that Council approves:-

- (1) the allocation of £19.4 million to develop a new leisure complex and swimming pool on part of the bus station site to replace the Pyramids;
- (2) that the Leader nominate and Council appoint the Leisure Complex Programme Board as a Sub-Committee of the Executive;

- (3) that all future spend decisions in respect of the £19.4 million budget for the development of the new Leisure Complex and Swimming Pool be delegated to the Leisure Complex Programme Board;
- (4) that the Leader nominate, and Council appoint, the following Members to the Leisure Complex Programme Board:
 - The Leader of the Council
 - Portfolio Holder- Economy and Culture
 - Portfolio Holder- City Development and
 - Leader of the Opposition or nominated representative; and
- (5) that the Proceedings of the Leisure Complex Programme Board take place in accordance with the Executive Procedure Rules.

(In accordance with Standing Order no.43, Councillor Fullam requested that his voting against this recommendation be recorded and Councillor Leadbetter requested that his abstention from voting be recorded)

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 7.35 pm)

Chair

The decisions indicated will normally come into force 5 working days after publication of the Statement of Decisions unless called in by a Scrutiny Committee. Where the matter in question is urgent, the decision will come into force immediately. Decisions regarding the policy framework or corporate objectives or otherwise outside the remit of the Executive will be considered by Council on 16 December 2014.

This page is intentionally left blank